
MINUTES OF THE STATE AUCTIONEERS COMMISSION  
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Seminar Room B 

8995 E. MAIN STREET, REYNOLDSBURG, OH 43068 
January 22, 2009 

 
PRESENT: 
Commissioner Mike Baker            Adam Ward, ODA Legislative Liaison  
Commissioner Gary Cain Donna Brinker Potter, Administrative Assistant III 
Commissioner Steve Remias            Jim Patterson, Assistant Attorney General 
Commissioner David Schnaidt            
Commissioner Jim Milleson    
 
Members of the Public: 
Chris Davis, President OAA 
Barry Baker, OAA 
 
Meeting called to order 1:15pm with the Pledge of Allegiance by Chairman Baker. All members 
of the commission are present.  We are still awaiting the confirmation of Commissioner Schnaidt 
who will abstain from voting. 
 
Chairman Baker asked if there were any changes or comments regarding the last meeting 
minutes.  He asked if everyone had an opportunity to look them over.  Commissioner Cain moved 
to accept the minutes as submitted.  Commissioner Milleson seconded.  No discussion noted.  
Motion carried by an affirmative vote of all members with Commissioner Schnaidt abstaining.   
 
Chairman Baker asked Donna Potter to give the enforcement update.  Ms. Potter stated that the 
changes to the verbal examination are being drafted into rule form and that the public hearing 
should be held prior to the next meeting.  She stated that everything is moving forward as 
anticipated.  She stated that she received a call from an auctioneer who stated that he was 
insolvent and had filed bankruptcy.  She stated that the auctioneer had been in business since the 
1990’s and he had indicated to her that he did not have a trust account nor did he know he was 
supposed to have an account.  She stated that she was afraid that this would not be the last call on 
this with the current economic situation.  She stated that she is working with Legal to put together 
a game plan on how to handle the insolvency issues.  Jim Patterson stated that since the last 
meeting that there has not been any movement on the court cases.  Mr. Patterson stated that in the 
situation discussed by Ms. Potter, there are several main issues: 1. enforcement actions—
ordinarily when there is a bankruptcy, there is an automatic stay on all enforcement actions.  It 
creates a problem when a debtor has a license issued by a regulatory authority.  The general rule 
is that the bankruptcy does not prevent the agency from preventing further harm vs. revenue 
generating actions.  It is important to determine if the auctioneer has actually filed bankruptcy.  
Often people use the term differently.  The second issue is how to deal with the recovery fund and 
the defense of the fund.  Mr. Patterson stated that generally speaking an insolvent auctioneer is 
grounds for a claim; but it gets complicated when have an auctioneer is supposed to have client 
funds held in trust account that is supposed to be separate.   He stated that there are different 
scenarios that you have to deal with.  He stated that from the department’s standpoint, they will 
do what ever is necessary to facilitate funds held in trust to the clients.  He believed that the court 
would find that the separate trust account is the funds of the client and not the auctioneer and 
would release the monies to the clients.  However, it gets difficult when the funds have been 
commingled and the department may have to go to court.  Mr. Patterson stated that once he has 
completed the research and advises the program, he would write something up to share with the 
commission.  Commissioner Cain stated that it is probably more confusing when there is a lack of 
a trust account.  Mr. Patterson stated that with a correctly set up trust account, it was his opinion 
that the court would view that as the funds of the client.  Chairman Baker asked for any thing 



else.  Mr. Patterson reported that he had a new boss, Richard Cordray.  He indicated that his 
immediate supervisor was staying the same and that procedurally things should stay the same.   
 
The next item on the agenda is the alternative to the apprenticeship.  Donna Potter read into the 
record the recommendations of the subcommittee: 
 
§ 4707.09. Apprentice auctioneer's license. 
The department of agriculture may grant apprentice auctioneers' licenses to those persons that are 
determined to be qualified by the department. Every applicant for an apprentice auctioneer's 
license shall pass an examination relating to the skills, knowledge, and statutes and rules 
governing auctioneers. Every applicant for an apprentice auctioneer's license shall furnish to the 
department, on forms provided by the department, satisfactory proof that the applicant: 

(A) Has a good reputation; 
(B) Is of trustworthy character; 
(C) Has attained the age of at least eighteen years; 
(D) Has obtained a written promise of a licensed auctioneer to sponsor the applicant during 

the applicant's apprenticeship; 
(E) Has satisfied the financial responsibility requirements established under section 4707.11 

of the Revised Code if applicable; 
(F) Has successfully completed a course of study in auctioneering at an institution that is 

approved by the state auctioneers commission. 
Before an apprentice may take the auctioneer's license examination, the apprentice shall serve an 
apprenticeship of at least twelve months, participate as a bid caller in at least twelve auction sales 
under the direct supervision of the sponsoring licensed auctioneer, which auctions shall be 
certified by the licensed auctioneer on the apprentice's application for an auctioneer's license. No 
apprentice auctioneer shall be under the sponsorship of more than one licensed auctioneer at one 
time. 
If an auctioneer intends to terminate sponsorship of an apprentice auctioneer, the sponsoring 
auctioneer shall notify the apprentice auctioneer of the sponsoring auctioneer's intention by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, at least ten days prior to the effective date of termination 
and, at the same time, shall deliver or mail by certified mail to the department a copy of the 
termination notice and the license of the apprentice auctioneer. No apprentice auctioneer shall 
perform any acts under authority of the apprentice's license after the effective date of the 
termination until the apprentice receives a new license. No more than one license shall be issued 
to any apprentice auctioneer for the same period of time. 
No licensed auctioneer shall have under the licensed auctioneer's sponsorship more than two 
apprentice auctioneers at one time. No auctioneer shall sponsor an apprentice auctioneer if the 
auctioneer has not been licensed and in good standing for a period of at least two years 
immediately before sponsoring the apprentice auctioneer. A sponsoring auctioneer whose license 
is suspended or revoked shall send to the department the apprentice auctioneer's license not later 
than fourteen days after the suspension or revocation. If a sponsoring auctioneer's license is 
suspended or revoked, the apprentice auctioneer shall obtain a written promise of sponsorship 
from another licensed auctioneer before performing any acts under the authority of an apprentice 
auctioneer's license. The apprentice auctioneer shall send a copy of the written promise of 
sponsorship of another auctioneer to the department. If the department receives a copy of such a 
written promise of sponsorship and the apprentice pays the fee established by the department, the 
department shall issue a new license to the apprentice. 
An apprentice auctioneer may terminate the apprentice's sponsorship with an auctioneer by 
notifying the auctioneer of the apprentice's intention by certified mail, return receipt requested, at 
least ten days prior to the effective date of termination. At the same time, the apprentice shall 
deliver or mail by certified mail to the department a copy of the termination notice. Upon 



receiving the termination notice, the sponsoring auctioneer shall promptly deliver or mail by 
certified mail to the department the license of the apprentice auctioneer. 
The termination of a sponsorship, regardless of who initiates the termination, shall not be cause 
for an apprentice auctioneer to lose credit for any certified auctions in which the apprentice 
participated as a bid caller or apprenticeship time the apprentice served under the direct 
supervision of the former sponsor. 
Associate Auctioneer 
 
(A) The department of agriculture may grant associate auctioneers' licenses to those individuals 

who are determined to be qualified by the department. Each individual who applies for an 
associate auctioneer's license shall furnish to the department, on forms provided by the 
department, satisfactory proof that the applicant: 
(1) Has a good reputation; 
(2) Is of trustworthy character; 
(3) Has attained the age of at least eighteen years; 
(4) Has done all of the following: 

A. The applicant has completed an approved auction school within one year prior to the 
date of application;  

B. The applicant shall take and pass the written auctioneer exam with a score of 75% or 
higher and receive a passing score on the verbal examination administered by the 
auction commission; 

C. Within two (2) years of the issuance of the auctioneer license, the applicant must 
successfully complete twelve hours of post-licensure education.  The first six hours 
must be completed within one (1) year of the issuance of the license. 

1. The post-licensure education shall consist of  ten (10) hours of the 
following core courses: 

a. Agency Law                            1 hour 
b. Contract Law               3 hours 
c. Uniform Commercial Code                2 hours 
d. Auction Ethics     1 hour 
e. Ohio Auction Law                 2 hours 
f. Trust/Escrow Accounts         1 hour 

2. The post-licensure education shall consist of the licensee’s choice 
of two (2) hours of the following elective courses: 

a. Advertising & Marketing                1 hour 
b. Business Math/Accounting                1 hour 
c. Insurance & Liability    1 hour 
d. Federal Firearms Law    1 hour 
e. Business Management    1 hour 
f. Automobile Auctions    1 hour 
g. Real Estate Auctions    1 hour 
h. Property appraisals                 1 hour 
i. Bid Calling                                          1 hour 

3. Courses must be taken from an approved course provider. 
(B) Failure to complete post-licensure education requirements shall result in an automatic license 

suspension. 
1.   Licensees will have six months from the date of suspension to provide proof of 

completion. 
2. Failure to provide proof of completion shall result in an automatic revocation of the 

license. 



3. If a license is revoked due to the failure to meet post-licensure requirements, the licensee 
may reapply within one (1) year of revocation. The licensee shall meet all requirements 
for licensure as if they had never been licensed which includes attendance at an approved 
auction school.  

(C) Any auctions conducted by an associate auctioneer must be conducted under the supervision 
of a principal auctioneer.  A principal auctioneer is a person licensed under section 4707.07 
who has been licensed for a period of at least five years and who has been in good standing 
for a period of at least two years who oversees the conduct of the auction.  The auctioneer 
must sign a verified form indicating that the associate auctioneer conducted the auction in 
conjunction with the auctioneer.  The associate auctioneer must keep the form on file with the 
auction records for a period of at least two years.   

(D) A non-resident applicant under this section, who has been licensed or a practicing auctioneer 
in another state for a period of at least two years prior to application, may make application to 
the state auctioneer commission for a waiver of the auction school requirement found in 
(A)(4)(a). 

Commissioner Schnaidt stated that one question popped into his mind.  He wanted to know what 
would happen in the verbal exam if they were no longer going to ask them about their 
apprenticeships.  Donna Potter recommended asking more probing questions about their school.  
Chairman Baker asked for any other comments.  Commissioner Schnaidt stated at the end of the 
subcommittee meeting, Commissioner Cain had asked a question regarding the responsibilities of 
the principal auctioneer.  He felt that it needed to be spelled out somewhere.  Donna Potter asked 
Jim Patterson if that could be addressed in rule or if it had to be covered in the statute.  Jim 
Patterson stated that the rule would be appropriate as long as the statute gives the rule making 
authority.  He recommended adding language to 4707.19 to specifically give the director the 
ability to make rules regarding the responsibilities of the principal.  Chairman Baker asked where 
they were at on this, where they ready to send it on.  Donna Potter stated that the commission 
would need to decide whether they wanted to seek additional action.  If approved, she would 
forward the language at the department for review.  Once the department has signed off on it, it 
would be distributed to the OAA for comment and hopefully to move forward from there.  
Chairman Baker asked if they needed a motion to move a head and let Donna Potter draft 
language for OAC approval.  Commissioner Cain so moved.  Commissioner Remias seconded.  
No further discussion noted.  Motion carried by an affirmative vote of the members with 
Commissioner Schnaidt abstaining.  Adam Ward stated that if the commission would decide to 
move forward, the department would take it under advisement.  Chairman Baker stated that he 
did not think that there was anything in there that would be objectionable to the department.  He 
stated that Chris Davis and Barry Baker would have to get the association on board and together 
on this.  He stated that the commission could only do so much.  Adam Ward stated that obviously 
the department would have to run it up the flag pole to the Governor’s Office before we could 
sign off on it.  He stated that he would be more than happy to assist anyway he could.   
 
Chairman Baker stated that under other business, Barry Baker has an auction fund request.  Barry 
Baker stated that he would like for the commission to make application and he would like to 
request education fund monies for: 1. Payment to the NAF in the amount of $5,000 to help with 
the Morpace survey.  He felt that it benefitted the auction community and public.  He stated that it 
is a very important survey.  It educates the public and auctioneers about what is being done in 
auctioneering.  He stated that the Morpace Survey is a report with national statistics on the 
number of auctions, the types of auctions, etc. 2.  He also stated that he would like to see a spring 
seminar this year.  He stated that they ran out of monies for the seminar and he felt that they 
should ask for $10,000 to organize for March or April.  Chairman Baker asked for clarification of 
the fiscal year.  Commissioner Schnaidt stated that he had a question for Adam Ward. He asked if 
they go for a controlling board for money, can they do that without specifics.  He asked if the 



controlling board would approve a broad spectrum without specific information on how much 
was being spent.  Adam Ward stated that he could not see anything being approved that is not 
well-defined in current environment.   He stated that the details of each of the expenditures will 
be scrutinized. They would need to be able to sell how members would benefit, what exactly it 
entails, and how will it help generate more money for the economy.  There are members on the 
committee who are deeply involved in the budget.  He does not think it is out of the realm of 
possibility, but it will take legwork and at least one day with legislators to get it done.  Barry 
Baker stated that in order to clarify, there are two more deadlines where you can submit all of the 
details.  The first deadline is February 5 and February 12 is the clarifying deadline.  Adam Ward 
stated that it takes a couple of weeks to formulate a request and the department needs at least two 
weeks to prepare the request.   

Commissioner Schnaidt stated that the Morpace Survey might not be problematic to be 
ready for the deadline, but the Spring Seminar would be more difficult to have prepared for 
submittal since they did not have anything prepared.  Chairman Baker stated that anyone can 
submit an education fund request and he preferred it if Barry Baker submits a request.  
Commissioner Remias stated it is like being between a rock and a hard place.  Chairman Baker 
stated the commission could say no.  Commissioner Schnaidt stated that they needed to be good 
stewards of the money.  He stated that they needed to have a full plan and don’t have time as a 
commission to put one together.  Commissioner Milleson stated that they are asking for money in 
a time of severe financial times.  Chairman Baker stated that it was a hard sell.  It is a rotary fund 
and their money but they would have to sell it.  He stated that he had a problem trying to ram it 
through in 2 weeks.  Jim Milleson stated that they needed the where, when, why, and how 
questions answered.  Commissioner Schnaidt expressed that he felt that they needed to do this the 
right way.  He did not see how it could be done today and he appreciated Barry Baker’s leg work 
and he felt his heart was in the right place.  A question was asked if they can get monies approved 
but for use in the next biennium.  Jim Patterson stated that you can make a motion for the next 
biennium, but you cannot commit funds beyond 6/30 due to the biennium expiring.  
Commissioner Cain stated that if you don’t ask for it, you won’t get it.  He asked if they were in 
agreement and if they are happy with the information.  Chairman Baker stated that it was an 
easier sell to get money for a seminar than for a donation.  Commissioner Milleson asked how the 
Morpace Survey brought back money for Ohio.  Chairman Baker stated that it is a good tool to 
help the auctioneer make the pitch for an auction.  Barry Baker stated that it affects more people 
and has a broader range than a seminar.  Chairman Baker stated that he was not sure how it would 
be received downtown.  He stated that he felt unorganized and did not want to ram rod it through.  
He did not know who was driving the train.  Commissioner Remias expressed a concern with the 
time element.  Commissioner Schnaidt asked for copies of the Morpace Survey for everyone. He 
felt it would be helpful.  Commissioner Remias moved to put both on the next meeting’s agenda.  
Commissioner Cain seconded.  Donna Potter stated that if they decide that they want to do a 
spring seminar at the next meeting, they will need to come prepared with ideas in place.  Motion 
carried by an affirmative vote of the commission with Commissioner Schnaidt abstaining.   
 
The next item on the agenda under Other Business is the use of credit cards and buyer’s 
premiums.  Commissioner Cain stated that in the auction meeting for realtors, ads were discussed 
that stated that a 3% Buyers Premium was waived for cash or check.  Commissioner Cain asked if 
it was covered in the statute.  Chairman Baker stated that the auctioneer should disclose who 
owns the buyer’s premium.   It is a technique that many auctioneers are implementing as a way to 
pass on the processing fee to the buyer for using credit cards.  Credit card companies do not allow 
you to charge an additional fee for using the credit card.  He said the practice was modeled after 
gas companies.  Donna Potter states that as long as it is disclosed and it is covered in the contract 
that there is no statutory prohibition under the auction law regarding its use.   
 



Chairman Baker asked for any other business, Commissioner Milleson suggested that it might be 
a good idea to hold the spring seminar around the time of the state fair bid calling contest and the 
sale of champions to get more participants.  Chris Davis stated that the state fair tells the OAA 
when the bid calling contest is going to be, they do not get a choice.  Chairman Baker asked if 
there was going to be a summer meeting.  Chris Davis stated that it was scheduled for July and 
that if the commission wanted to do a joint seminar with the OAA that they would be open to the 
idea in an effort to save monies.  Chairman Baker stated that he appreciated it.  
 
With no other business before the commission, Commissioner Remias moved to adjourn.  
Commissioner Cain seconded.  No further discussion.  Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 
2:35pm. 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Approved Chairman  


